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State of California The Resources Agency

Memorandum

To : Warden Rennie d el and Date: Sept enber 1, 1981

Telephone: ATSS ( )

From: Department of Fish and Game - Region 3

Subject: Mark West Creek at Ranchero Mark West

On August 20, 1981 Seasonal Aid Leslie Harris and | inspected Mark West O eek
at Ranchero Mark West along the St. Helena Road. W tal ked with the owner,
Ji m Doer ksen (tel ephone 415-595-5900, 415-591-9959, or 707-539-7004) and
received his permssion to take a | ook at the creek through his property and
to take stream fl ow nmeasurenents. | told M. Doerksen of the conplaints
regardi ng sudden reductions in streamflow from downstream | andowners.

M. Doerksen indicated that he had al so noticed significant fluctuations in
streamflow entering his property. He could not attribute the fluctuations
to a particular cause; the only diversions he knew of upstreamwere severa
for gardens. M. Doerksen described his diversion as being for only four
hours once every two weeks. The exact frequency of irrigation is deternm ned
by soil noisture nonitors.

W wal ked downstream for several hundred yards from M. Doerksen's house,
observing the stream Fish habitat was abundant with many bi g rocks,
under cut banks, small and | arge pools. Streamflow was adequate for fish
survival. Water tenperature (58°F) was excellent for steel head production.
Young- of -t he-year steel head were quite abundant throughout as were roach
Sucker, stickl eback, and scul pin were seen. O sone concern were the few
| arge green sunfish seen in sone of the |arger pools; these may have cone
fromM. Doerksen's farmpond | ocated near the creek, but they were noted as
far upstreamas the Calistoga Road bridge as early as 1969. Because of
their aggressive nature, the green sunfish pose a serious threat to the
native aquatic life.

At a point about 50 yards upstream of M. Doerksen's diversion punp we
nmeasured the streamflow with a Pygny flowreter. The flow at about 1000
hours was .277 cubic feet per second or 125 gallons per mnute.

The diversion punp at Ranchero Mark West draws its water froma small (15 x
15" x 4'") on streamreservoir on Mark Wst Greek formed by an earth dam The
punp is of the centrifugal type with a 6" intake and a 4" outlet, powered by
a 6-cylinder gasoline engine. The intake appeared to be unscreened. Sid
Al sap of the Sonoma County Water Agency estinmated, based on ny description
of the punp, that the diversion rate could be from 100-to 200 gal | ons per
m nut e.



War den Renni e d el and -2- Sept enber 1, 1981

My assessnent of Mark West Creek in the vicinity of Ranchero Mark West
and of the diversion at Ranchero Mark West is that the diversion is
quite capable of diverting all the surface flow of Mark West Creek at
that point, causing a severe reduction of surface flow dowstreamfor a
consi derabl e di stance. Such a flow reduction would dewater the riffles
and | ower the water level in the pools. Sonme fish could be stranded
and die in the dewatered riffles; fish in the pools would probably not
be greatly affected if the flow reduction were only for a few hours.
G ven the apparently high productive potential and undi sturbed state of
Mark West Creek along the St. Hel ena Road and the depressed popul ation
of steel head throughout the stream such a diversion must be considered
a substantial alteration of the stream

This diversion could be mtigated by limting the diversion rate to a
maxi mum of about 50 gallons per mnute for 4 hours per day. The m ni num
flow to be bypassed should be 75 gallons per mnute fromApril 15

t hrough Novenber 1. The punp intake shoul d be screened adequately to
prevent inpingenment of steel head fry.

The dam used to pond water for the diversion is constructed of a fine
grained soil. This material will snother the gravels downstream when
the damis breached. This will cause an unacceptabl e degradati on of
st eel head spawni ng habitat in Mark West Creek. This soil dam shoul d be
renoved fromthe streamto a point above high water before it can wash
out. A quantity of this soil has already been deposited on the gravels
just below the dam Attenpts to clean out this nmaterial would only
cause additional damage. Any future dam should be of clean river-run

gravel .
William G. Cox
Fishery Biologist
VG t f Region 3
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